
Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District 
2551 W Avenue H 

Lancaster, CA 93536 

www.avaqmd.ca.gov 

Governing Board Regular Meeting 

Agenda 
MEETING LOCATION 

Antelope Valley Transit Authority 

District Office 

42210 6th Street West 

Lancaster, CA 93534 

661.723.8070 

TUESDAY, JUNE 20, 2023 

10:00 A.M. 

BOARD MEMBERS 

Marvin Crist, Chair, City of Lancaster 

Austin Bishop, Vice Chair, City of Palmdale 

Ron Hawkins, Los Angeles County 

Howard Harris, Los Angeles County 

Ken Mann, City of Lancaster 

Andrea Alarcón, City of Palmdale 

Newton Chelette, Public Member 

IF YOU CHALLENGE ANY DECISION REGARDING ANY OF THE LISTED PROPOSALS 

IN COURT, YOU MAY BE LIMITED TO RAISING ONLY THOSE ISSUES YOU OR 

SOMEONE ELSE RAISED DURING THE PUBLIC TESTIMONY PERIOD REGARDING 

THAT PROPOSAL OR IN WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE DELIVERED TO THE 

GOVERNING BOARD TELEPHONICALLY OR OTHERWISE ELECTRONICALLY AT, OR 

PRIOR TO, THE PUBLIC HEARING.    

DUE TO TIME CONSTRAINTS AND THE NUMBER OF PERSONS WISHING TO GIVE 

ORAL TESTIMONY, PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE LIMITED TO FIVE MINUTES PER 

SPEAKER.  YOU MAY WISH TO MAKE YOUR COMMENTS IN WRITING TO ASSURE 

THAT YOU ARE ABLE TO EXPRESS YOURSELF ADEQUATELY.    

ALL SCHEDULED ITEMS WILL BE HEARD AT THE ANTELOPE VALLEY TRANSIT 

AUTHORITY (AVTA) DISTRICT OFFICE, 42210 6TH STREET WEST, LANCASTER, CA 

93534 AND THE TELECONFERENCE LOCATION(S), IF APPLICABLE. PLEASE NOTE 

THAT THE BOARD MAY ADDRESS ITEMS IN THE AGENDA IN A DIFFERENT ORDER 

THAN THE ORDER IN WHICH THE ITEM HAS BEEN POSTED.    

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ANY AGENDA ITEM WILL BE HEARD AT THE TIME OF 

DISCUSSION OF THE AGENDA ITEM.  PUBLIC COMMENTS NOT PERTAINING TO 

AGENDA ITEMS WILL BE HEARD DURING THE PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD BELOW.  

1 of 55



2 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDIZED ITEMS MAY BE SUBMITTED VIA EMAIL TO 

PUBLICCOMMENT@AVAQMD.CA.GOV  AT LEAST TWO HOURS PRIOR TO THE START 

OF THE MEETING.  

2 of 55



3 

CALL TO ORDER  10:00 A.M. 

Pledge of Allegiance. 

Roll Call 

Items with potential Conflict of Interests — If you believe you have a conflict of interest, 

please recuse yourself at the appropriate time. If you have a question regarding a potential 

conflict of interest, please contact District Counsel. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

The following consent items are expected to be routine and non-controversial and will be 

acted upon by the Board at one time without discussion unless a Board Member requests 

an item be held for discussion under DEFERRED ITEMS. 

1. Approve Minutes from Regular Governing Board Meeting of May 16, 2023. Find

that the California Environmental Quality Act does not apply to this item.

2. Monthly Grant Funding Summary.  Receive and file. Find that the California

Environmental Quality Act does not apply to this item.

3. Monthly Activity Report.  Receive and file. Find that the California Environmental

Quality Act does not apply to this item.

4. Approve payments to City of Lancaster in the amount of $249,058.16 for FY23

Quarter 3 expenditures. Find that the California Environmental Quality Act does

not apply to this item.

5. This Preliminary Financial Report is provided to the Governing Board for

information concerning the fiscal status of the District at April 30, 2023.

6. Consider the Consulting Agreement with Bret Banks; authorize the Chairman of

the Governing Board to sign the agreement; Find that the California Environmental

Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this item and direct staff actions.

7. Approve the First Amendment to the Agreement between the Antelope Valley Air

Quality Management District (AVAQMD) and the City of Lancaster amending

Section 13 in its entirety, to include Operational Oversight, naming Barbara Lods

as the Executive Director pursuant to this Amendment, whose initial classification

and compensation shall be Director 2000, Step 1 on the City of Lancaster’s

compensation and classification schedule and shall be considered as an at-will

employee; Find that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not

apply to this item; Authorize the Chairman to finalize terms and conditions of the

proposed Agreement; and Authorize the Chairman to execute the final Agreement.

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 

DEFERRED ITEMS 

NEW BUSINESS 

3 of 55



4 

8. 1) Award an amount not to exceed $33,237 in Mobile Source Emission Reductions

Program (AB 923) funds to Jeff Pantana for the replacement of an older diesel

tractor with new, cleaner technology; 2) Authorize the Executive Director/APCO

the option to change the funding source if warranted or if other applicable funding

sources become available; 3) Authorize the Deputy Director and staff to negotiate

target time frames and technical project details and execute an agreement, approved

as to legal form by the Office of District Counsel; and 4) ) Find that the California

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this item.

9. 1) Award an amount not to exceed $82,000 in Mobile Source Emission Reductions

Program funds to the City of Lancaster for a hydrogen mobile fueler; 2) Authorize

the Executive Director the option to change the funding source if warranted or if

other applicable funding sources become available; 3) Authorize the Executive

Director and staff to negotiate target time frames and technical project details and

execute an agreement, approved as to legal form by the Office of District Counsel;

and 4) ) Find that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply

to this item.

10. Conduct Continued Public Hearing to consider the proposed AVAQMD Budget for

FY 2023-24:  a.  Re-Open the continued public hearing; b.  Receive supplemental

staff report and/or staff update; c.  Receive public testimony; d.  Close public

hearing; e. Find that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not

apply to this item; f. Adopt a resolution approving and adopting the budget for FY

2023-2024.

11. Reports:  Governing Board Counsel, Executive Director/APCO, Staff.

12. Board Member Reports and Suggestions for Future Agenda Items.

13. Adjourn to Regular Governing Board Meeting of Tuesday, July 18, 2023.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if special assistance is 

needed to participate in the Board Meeting, please contact the Executive Director 

during regular business hours at 661.723.8070 x22.  Notification received 48 hours 

prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodations.  All 

accommodation requests will be processed swiftly and resolving any doubt in favor of 

accessibility. 

I hereby certify, under penalty of perjury, that this agenda has been posted 72 hours prior 

to the stated meeting in a place accessible to the public. Copies of this agenda and any or 

all additional materials relating thereto are available at www.avaqmd.ca.gov or by 

contacting Adrianna Castaneda at 661.723.8070 ext. 21 or by email at 

acastaneda@avaqmd.ca.gov. 

Mailed & Posted on:  Thursday, June 15, 2023 

Adrianna Castañeda
Adrianna Castaneda

4 of 55



5 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approve Minutes 

from Regular Governing Board Meeting of May 16, 2023. Find that the California 

Environmental Quality Act does not apply to this item. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

5 of 55



Draft Minutes 

Draft Minutes 03.21.2023 

ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
GOVERNING BOARD MEETING 

TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2023 
ANTELOPE VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY DISTRICT OFFICE 

LANCASTER, CA 

Draft Minutes 

Board Members Present: 
Marvin Crist, Chair, City of Lancaster  
Austin Bishop, Vice Chair, City of Palmdale 
Ron Hawkins, Los Angeles County  
Ken Mann, City of Lancaster  
Andrea Alarcón, City of Palmdale 
Howard Harris, Los Angeles County 
Newton Chelette, Public Member 

Board Members Absent:  

CALL TO ORDER  
Chair CRIST called the meeting to order at 10:01 a.m. Chair CRIST asked Board Member CHELETTE to 
lead the Pledge of Allegiance. Chair CRIST called for roll call, roll call was taken.   

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 Chair CRIST called for PUBLIC COMMENT.  At this time, no public comment was made in person, or
electronically, moved onto CONSENT CALENDAR.

CONSENT CALENDAR – The following consent items were acted upon by the Board at one time without 
discussion.  Upon motion by Board Member CHELETTE, seconded by Board Member HARRIS, and 
carried by the following roll call vote, with seven AYES votes by Board Members, ANDREA ALARCON, 
AUSTIN BISHOP, MARVIN CRIST, NEWTON CHELETTE, RON HAWKINS, HOWARD HARRIS 
and KEN MANN on the Consent Calendar, as follows: 

Agenda Item #1 – Approve Minutes from Regular Governing Board Meeting of April 18, 2023. Find that 
the California Environmental Quality Act does not apply to this item.  

Approved Minutes from Regular Governing Board Meeting April 18, 2023. 

Agenda Item #2 – Monthly Grant Funding Summary.  Receive and file.  
Presenter: Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO. 
Received and Filed Monthly Grant Funding Summary. 

Agenda Item #3 – Monthly Activity Report.  Receive and file.  
Presenter: Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO. 
Received and Filed Monthly Activity Report. 

6 of 55



Draft Minutes 

Draft Minutes 03.21.2023 

Agenda Item #4 – Receive and file the Financial Report.  This Preliminary Financial Report is provided 
to the Governing Board for information concerning the fiscal status of the District at March 31, 2023.  
Presenter:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO. 
Received and filed the Financial Report. This Preliminary Financial Report is provided to the Governing Board 
for information concerning the fiscal status of the District at March 31, 2023. 
 
Agenda Item #5 - 1) Authorize the District to participate in the FARMER Program’s Shared Allocation 
Pool (SAP); and 2) Authorize the Executive Director/APCO and staff to negotiate, sign, and amend as 
needed, agreements and contracts related to administration and implementation of the FAMER SAP 
Master Agreement, approved as to legal form by the Office of District Counsel .  
Presenter: Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst. 
1) Authorized the District to participate in the FARMER Program’s Shared Allocation Pool (SAP); and 2) 
Authorized the Executive Director/APCO and staff to negotiate, sign, and amend as needed, agreements and 
contracts related to administration and implementation of the FAMER SAP Master Agreement, approved as to 
legal form by the Office of District Counsel. 
 
Agenda Item #6 - 1) Approve $70,000 in Mobile Source Emissions Reduction Program (AB 923) funds 
toward continued implementation of the District’s Voluntary Accelerated Vehicle Retirement Program 
(VAVR); 2) Authorize the Executive Director/APCO the option to change the funding source if 
warranted or if other applicable funding sources become available; 3) Authorize the Executive Director 
and staff to negotiate target time frames and technical project details and execute an agreement, 
approved as to legal form by the Office of District Counsel and 4) Find that this item is not a project 
pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act.  
Presenter: Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst. 
1) Approved $70,000 in Mobile Source Emissions Reduction Program (AB 923) funds toward continued 
implementation of the District’s Voluntary Accelerated Vehicle Retirement Program (VAVR); 2) Authorized 
the Executive Director/APCO the option to change the funding source if warranted or if other applicable 
funding sources become available; 3) Authorized the Executive Director and staff to negotiate target time 
frames and technical project details and execute an agreement, approved as to legal form by the Office of 
District Counsel and 4) Find that this item is not a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality 
Act.  
 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
 

DEFERRED ITEMS 
None. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Agenda Item #7– 1) Award an amount not to exceed $50,000 in Mobile Emission Reductions Program 
(AB 2766) funds to the Alternative Fuel Vehicle Program; 2) Authorize the Executive Director/APCO the 
option to change the funding source if warranted or if other applicable funding sources become available; 
3) Authorize the Executive Director and staff to update the Alternative Fuel Vehicle Program to include 
Fuel Cell Electric Vehicles (FCEV); and 4) Find that this item is not a project pursuant to the California 
Environmental Quality Act .  
Presenter: Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst. 

7 of 55



Draft Minutes 

Draft Minutes 03.21.2023 

Chair CRIST opened the public hearing. Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst, presented background information 
and answered questions from the Board. Chair Crist called for public comment, no public comment was made 
in person, or electronically, being none, Chair CRIST closed the public hearing. The Governing Board and 
District Staff is pulling this item and this item will be presented in a future Governing Board Meeting.  
 
 
Agenda Item #8 - 1) Award an amount not to exceed $31,103 in Mobile Source Emission Reductions 
Program (AB 2766) funds to Westside Union School District for the purchase of a Zero Emissions Mean 
Green Riding Mower; 2) Authorize the Executive Director/APCO the option to change the funding 
source if warranted or if other applicable sources become available; 3) Authorize the Executive Director 
and staff to negotiate target time frames and technical project details and execute an agreement, 
approved as to legal form by the Office of District Counsel; and 4) Find that the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this item . 
Presenter:  Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst.  
Chair CRIST opened the public hearing. Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst, presented background information 
and answered questions from the Board. Chair Crist called for public comment, no public comment was made 
in person, or electronically, being none, Chair CRIST closed the public hearing. Upon motion by Board 
Member  ALARCON, seconded by Board Member HAWKINS, and carried by the following roll call vote, 
with seven AYES votes by Board Members, ANDREA ALARCON, AUSTIN BISHOP, MARVIN CRIST, 
NEWTON CHELETTE, RON HAWKINS, HOWARD HARRIS, and KENN MANN, the Board, 1) 
Awarded an amount not to exceed $31,103 in Mobile Source Emission Reductions Program (AB 2766) funds 
to Westside Union School District for the purchase of a Zero Emissions Mean Green Riding Mower; 2) 
Authorized the Executive Director/APCO the option to change the funding source if warranted or if other 
applicable sources become available; 3) Authorized the Executive Director and staff to negotiate target time 
frames and technical project details and execute an agreement, approved as to legal form by the Office of 
District Counsel; and 4) Find that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this 
item. 
 
Agenda Item #9-Conduct Public Hearing to consider the proposed AVAQMD Budget for FY 2023-24:  a.  
Open public hearing; b.  Receive staff report; c.  Receive public testimony; d.  Close public hearing; e. 
Find that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this item.; f. Continue to 
the meeting of June 20, 2023 for adoption 
Presenter: Barbara Lods, Operations Manager 
Chair Crist opened the public hearing.  Barbara Lods, Operations Manager, presented the proposed AVAQMD 
budget and answered questions from the Board.  Chair Crist called for public comment, being none, Chair Crist 
closed the public hearing and continued item to the meeting of June 20, 2021 for adoption. 
 
Agenda Item #10– Informational Discussion. 

o Bret Banks, Executive Director presented a video of the 2023 Lancaster Poppy Festival CORE Event. 
Agenda Item #11 – Informational Discussion. 

o Bret Banks, Executive Director presented a PowerPoint presentation on the Lancaster Earth Day Event  
Agenda Item #12– Reports. 
Governing Board Counsel –  

o  No report.  
Executive Director/APCO – 

o Introduced the Governing Board to Taylor Morais, AVAQMD’s new Air Quality Engineer. AVAQMD 
is working with the City of Palmdale staff on a new incentive program for electric charging stations for 
residents. The district is working with City of Lancaster for the production of temporary hydrogen 

8 of 55



Draft Minutes 

Draft Minutes 03.21.2023 

fueling stations. 
Staff –  

o No report. 

Agenda Item #13– Board Member Reports and Suggestions for Future Agenda Items. 
o Board Member Austin Bishop shared the production of new sodium ion batteries. 

Agenda Item #14– Adjourn to Regular Governing Board Meeting of Tuesday, June 20, 2023. 
Being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 10:49 a.m. to the next regularly scheduled Governing 
Board Meeting of Tuesday, June 20, 2023. 

9 of 55



 10 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Monthly Grant 

Funding Summary.  Receive and file. Find that the California Environmental Quality Act 

does not apply to this item. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

10 of 55



Item #2 – Grant Funds Project Summary 
May 2023 

AB 2766 ($4 DMV Fee) 
$655,000 Annually by Monthly Distribution 
These fees fund the District’s Mobile Source Emission Reductions (MSER) Grant Program.  The funds must be 
used “to reduce air pollution from motor vehicles and for related planning, monitoring, enforcement, and 
technical studies necessary for the implementation of the California Clean Air Act of 1988”. 
Funding Limits:  No surplus emission reductions or cost-effectiveness limit requirements. 

AB 923 ($2 DMV Fee) 
$614,000 Annually by Monthly Distribution 
These fees fund the District’s Mobile Source Emission Reductions (MSER) Grant Program.  The funds must be 
used to remediate air pollution harms created by motor vehicles. 
Funding Limits:  Carl Moyer eligible projects; unregulated agriculture vehicles and equipment; school bus 
projects; light-duty vehicle retirement program; and alternative fuel and electric infrastructure projects.  
Surplus emission reductions required.  Subject to cost-effectiveness limit. 

Carl Moyer Program 
$1,730,061.00 FY 21/22 Allocation 
Carl Moyer Program (CMP) funds provide incentives to gain early or extra emission reductions by retrofitting, 
repowering, or replacing older more polluting engines with newer, cleaner engines including zero and near zero 
emission technologies.  CMP funding categories include on-road heavy-duty vehicles, off-road equipment, 
locomotives, marine vessels, light-duty passenger vehicles, lawn mower replacement and alternative fuel 
infrastructure projects.  Surplus emission reductions required.  Subject to cost-effectiveness limit. 

AB 134 Community Air Protection (CAP) Projects 
$855,673 FY 19/20 Allocation 
The purpose of AB 134 funds is to implement projects under the Carl Moyer Program specifically for projects 
that meet the goals of AB 617.  These funds are focused on replacing older polluting engines operating in 
disadvantaged and low-income communities with newer, cleaner engines prioritizing zero-emission projects. 
CMP funding categories include on-road heavy-duty vehicles, off-road equipment, locomotives, marine vessels, 
light-duty passenger vehicles, lawn mower replacement and alternative fuel infrastructure projects.  Surplus 
emission reductions required.  Subject to cost-effectiveness limit. 

Current Balance: $737,993.00 

Current Balance: $139,913.00 

Current Balance: $837,470.00 

Current Balance: $879,529.00 

11 of 55



 12 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Monthly Activity 

Report.  Receive and file. Find that the California Environmental Quality Act does not 

apply to this item. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

12 of 55



Agenda Item #3

Date: June 14, 2023
Subject: May Operations Activity Report

Permit Inspections - 118
Notices of Violation (NOV) Issued – 4
Vapor Recovery Tests Witnessed – 4
 Complaints – 3
Complaint Investigations – 3
Asbestos Notifications – 13
Asbestos Project Inspections - 0

Active Companies - 299
Active Facilities - 543 
Active Permits - 1138
Certificate of Occupancy/Building Permit Reviews - 2 

CEQA Project Comment Letters - 12

State or Local Air Monitoring Stations (SLAMS) Network Air Monitoring Site:

Lancaster Site (full meteorology, CO, NOx, 03, PM10, PM2)
Full meteorology (exterior temperature, wind speed, wind direction, exterior pressure and relative 
humidity)

Community Sensors:
13 PurpleAir particulate sensors (Del Sur School, Leona Valley Elementary, 
Anaverde Hills, Esperanza Elementary School, Joe Walker Middle School, Desert Willow 
Middle School, Amargosa Creek, Eastside High School, Littlerock High School, Knight 
High School, Westside School District Offices, (2) Wilsona School District. 

13 of 55



AVAQMD CEQA PROJECTS
BOARD MEETING    

6/20/2023

Date Rec'd Location Project Name Description Comment Date Due Date Sent

4/27/2023 Palmdale 4-Story, 114-Unit Hotel

Site Plan Review 23-004 for the request to construct a 
114-unit, four-story hotel on 1.64 acres. This project site 
is located south of Palmdale Blvd and east of 5th Street 
West in the city of Palmdale, CA (APN: 3004-002-900).

Dust Control Signage 
Rule 219-Permitting 
CARB Equipment 
EV Charging Grant

5/17/2023 5/10/2023

4/27/2023 Palmdale Copart Industrial Car Yard

Pre-Application 23-025 requesting to develop 
approximately 39 vacant acres for short-term storage and 
sale of operable and inoperable used vehicles and 
equipment. This project site is located on the southwest 
corner of Avenue L and 40th Street East in the city of 
Palmdale, CA (APN: 3170-015-006).

Existing DCP in Place 
Rule 219-Permitting 
CARB Equipment 

5/31/2023 5/11/2023

5/2/2023 Lancaster
Courtyard by Marriot (4-Story, 126-room 
Hotel)

Conditional Use Permit 23-006 for the request to develop 
a proposed 4-story, 126-room hotel (Courtyard by 
Marriot). This project site is located at the cross streets: 
of 20th Street West and Avenue J-12 in the city of 
Lancaster, CA (APN: 3129-017-033).

Dust Control Signage 
Rule 219-Permitting 
CARB Equipment 
EV Charging Grant

5/2/2023 5/11/2023

4/27/2023 Palmdale 2 Industrial Buildings

Site Plan Review 20-011 requesting to construct two 
buildings for industrial uses totaling 100,000 square feet. 
This project site is located on the southeast corner of 
Lockheed Drive and Blackbird Drive in the city of 
Palmdale, CA (APN: 3022-026-003). 

Rule 302-Construction Excavation
DCP-TTM
Rule 219-Permitting 
CARB Equipment
EV Charging Grant

5/15/2023 5/11/2023

5/1/2023 Lancaster East Side Overlay Zone 

Notice of Availability of a Draft Environmental Impact 
Report (EIR) for the Eastside Overlay Zone requesting to 
establish an East Side Overlay Zone in the eastern portion 
of Lancaster.  An overlay zone is a zoning district that is 
applied over one or more previously established zoning 
districts, establishing additional or stricter standards and 
criteria for covered properties in addition to those of the 
underlying zoning district. This project site encompasses 
an approximately 5,841-acre area identified as the East 
Side Overlay Zone. The proposed overlay zone is 
generally bounded by Avenue J to the north, 110 Street 
East to the east, Avenue L to the south, and 40th Street 
East to the west.

No Comment 6/12/2023 5/11/2023

14 of 55



AVAQMD CEQA PROJECTS
BOARD MEETING    

6/20/2023

Date Rec'd Location Project Name Description Comment Date Due Date Sent

5/8/2023 Palmdale
Industrial Warehouse with 54 Truck Docking 
Doors

Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR; State 
Clearinghouse No. 2022080663) for Site Plan Review 22-
012 (SPR 22-012) requesting to construct and operate 
one 380,410 square foot (s.f.) light industrial warehouse 
building on an approximately 18.05-acre vacant property 
in the City of Palmdale, CA. A total of 54 truck docking 
doors are proposed on the north side of the building. This 
project site is located along the west side of 8th Street 
East, immediately south of an inactive UPRR rail spur, 
approximately 0.14-mile south of East Rancho Vista 
Boulevard/Avenue P, and immediately east of active 
Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR) mainline tracks and Sierra 
Highway (APN: 3022-001-027).

Rule 302-Construction Excavation
DCP
Rule 219-Permitting 
CARB Equipment

6/19/2023 5/17/2023

5/10/2023 Lancaster Warehouse Building

Director’s Review 23-064 planning documents for the 
proposed construction of a new single-story warehouse 
and site paving at an existing school site. This project site 
is located at 44327 Fig Avenue, Lancaster, CA 933534 
(APN: 3131-005-900). 

Dust Control Signage & Project 
Signage Information Form
Rule 219-Permitting 
CARB Equipment 

5/31/2023 5/17/2023

5/22/2023 Palmdale
5 Commercial Buildings & 173 Three-Story 
Townhomes 

 Pre-Application 23-024 requesting to develop 16.5 
vacant acres with five commercial buildings totaling 
58,979 square feet and 173 three-story townhomes. This 
project site is located north of Avenue S between 40th 
Streets East in the city of Palmdale, CA (APNs: 3023-007-
012, -043, -044, and -045). 

Rule 302-Construction Excavation
DCP
Rule 219-Permitting 
CARB Equipment
EV Charging Grant

6/20/2023 5/30/2023

5/22/2023 Palmdale
6,500 sq. ft. Outdoor Shade Cover with 
Enclosed Lobby Area

Pre-Application 23-028 planning documents for the 
proposed construction of a new 6,500 square-foot 
outdoor shade cover with an enclosed lobby area and 
accessible men’s and women’s restrooms. This project 
site is located at 39100 10th Street West, Lancaster, CA 
93551 (APN: 3003-079-001). 

Project Signage Information Form
Rule 219-Permitting 
CARB Equipment 

6/20/2023 5/30/2023

15 of 55



AVAQMD CEQA PROJECTS
BOARD MEETING    

6/20/2023

Date Rec'd Location Project Name Description Comment Date Due Date Sent

5/22/2023 Lancaster Battery Energy Storage Facility

Notice of Availability/Notice of Intent to Adopt a 
Mitigated Negative Declaration for Conditional Use 
Permit (CUP) No. 23-001 requesting to construct and 
operate a battery energy storage facility capable of 
delivering up to 400 megawatts (MW) of energy storage 
capacity and associated ancillary services into the 
California electrical grid. This project site is located on 
approximately 20 acres at the northwest corner of 90th 
Street West and Avenue J in the city of Lancaster, CA 
(APN:3105-001-042). 

Rule 302-Construction Excavation
DCP
Rule 219-Permitting 
CARB Equipment

6/9/2023 5/30/2023

5/25/2023 Palmdale Office Building with Underground Garage

Pre-Application 23-029 requesting to develop 1.21 acres 
of vacant land with one building totaling 24,600 square 
feet. This project site is located on the SWC of 11th Street 
West and Avenue M-14 in the city of Palmdale, CA (APNs: 
3111-022-054 and -055).

Dust Control Signage & Project 
Signage Information Form
Rule 219-Permitting 
CARB Equipment 
EV Charging

6/21/2023 6/5/2023

5/25/2023 Palmdale
20 Lots for Future 40 Single-family Residential 
Lots

Pre-Application 23-030 requesting to subdivide 4.52 acres 
into 20 lots to develop 40 single-family residential lots. 
This project site is located south of Avenue S, and east of 
40th Street East in the city of Palmdale, CA (APN: 3052-
009-032).

Dust Control Signage & Project 
Signage Information Form
Rule 1403-Asbestos
Rule 219-Permitting 
CARB Equipment

6/21/2023 6/5/2023

16 of 55



 17 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approve payments to 

City of Lancaster in the amount of $249,058.16 for FY23 Quarter 3 expenditures. Find that 

the California Environmental Quality Act does not apply to this item. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

17 of 55



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA

AGENDA ITEM # 4

DATE: June 20, 2023

RECOMMENDATION: Approve payments to City of Lancaster in the amount of 
$249,058.16 for FY23 Quarter 3 expenditures. Find that the California Environmental Quality 
Act does not apply to this item.

SUMMARY:  The District contracts for services with City of Lancaster; an invoice for 
services is presented for payment.

BACKGROUND:  Key Expenses: Staffing expenses of $226,416.51.

The AVAQMD contracts with the City of Lancaster for essential executive, administrative, and 
fiscal services. 

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:  The AVAQMD Governing Board must authorize 
all payments to the City of Lancaster.

REVIEW BY OTHERS: This item was reviewed by Allison Burns, Special Counsel as to 
legal form; and by Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO, on or before June 13, 2023.

FINANCIAL DATA:  The contract and direct expenditure amounts are part of the approved 
District budget for FY23. No change in appropriations is anticipated as a result of the approval 
of this item.

PRESENTER:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO

18 of 55



19 of 55



 20 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: This Preliminary 

Financial Report is provided to the Governing Board for information concerning the fiscal 

status of the District at April 30, 2023. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

20 of 55



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA

AGENDA ITEM  # 5

DATE:  June 20, 2023

RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file. Find that the California Environmental 
Quality Act does not apply to this item.

SUMMARY:  This Preliminary Financial Report is provided to the Governing Board for 
information concerning the fiscal status of the District at April 30, 2023. 

BACKGROUND:  The Financial Reports for April 2023 provide financial and budgetary 
performance information for the District for the period referenced.  

BALANCE SHEET. The balance sheet summarizes the District’s financial position on April 
30, 2023.

STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES. A summary of all District revenue 
and related expenditures incurred in the day to day administration of District Operations.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITY.  The target variance for April is 84%.  

The District Wide report details revenue and expenses for the District’s operating 
account and grant funds. Contracted Services reports the expenses made by the 
(MDAQMD) and passed through to the District including salaries. Report Recap 
consolidates both reports.

BANK REGISTERS. This report details the Districts bank activity.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file.

REVIEW BY OTHERS:  This item was reviewed by Allison Burns, Special Counsel as 
to legal form and by Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO (AVAQMD) on or about June 
13, 2023.

PRESENTER:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO. 

21 of 55



22 of 55



23 of 55



24 of 55



25 of 55



26 of 55



27 of 55



28 of 55



29 of 55



30 of 55



 31 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Consider the 

Consulting Agreement with Bret Banks; authorize the Chairman of the Governing Board to 

sign the agreement; Find that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not 

apply to this item and direct staff actions. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

31 of 55



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA

AGENDA ITEM  #6

DATE: June 20, 2023

RECOMMENDATION:   Consider the Consulting Agreement with Bret Banks; authorize 
the Chairman of the Governing Board to sign the agreement; Find that the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this item and direct staff actions.

SUMMARY:  This item allows the Governing Board to consider the Consulting 
Agreement with Bret Banks, to commence on the Effective Date and shall expire six (6) 
months thereafter, on January 1, 2024, unless extended pursuant to subsection 2.02 or 
terminated as per section 20.3 of the contract and direct actions to develop and execute an 
amended agreement.

BACKGROUND:  This item allows the Governing Board to consider a Consulting 
Agreement with Bret Banks.  

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:  Governing Board action is required to approve 
the Consulting Agreement with Mr. Banks.

PRESENTER:  Allison Burns, Legal Counsel.

32 of 55



1
NG-U9ZQVMF2/4883-9920-9774v4/200653-0001

ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
CONSULTING AGREEMENT

This CONSULTING AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is dated for reference purposes only as of  
July 1, 2023 (“Effective Date”) and entered into by and between the ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR 
QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT (“DISTRICT”) and BRET BANKS (“BANKS”) 
(collectively referred to herein as the “Parties”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, on or about December 15, 2015, BANKS commenced his employment as Air 
Pollution Control Officer of the DISTRICT (“APCO”) pursuant to minute order of the Board of 
Directors of the DISTRICT and that certain contract between the DISTRICT and Mojave Desert Air 
Quality Management DISTRICT (“MDAQMD”) dated April 19, 2016.

WHEREAS, the contract between the DISTRICT and MDAQMD terminated on September 
30, 2022.

WHEREAS, BANKS and DISTRICT entered into that certain Air Pollution Control Officer 
Consulting Agreement dated October 1, 2022.

WHEREAS, BANKS has elected to retire as APCO, but has agreed to consult back to the 
DISTRICT in a transitional capacity in accordance with this Agreement.

WHEREAS, the DISTRICT’s Board of Directors (“BOARD”) and BANKS desire to set forth 
their agreement for the DISTRICT’s consulting agreement with BANKS on the terms and subject to 
the conditions set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1.  DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

1.01 DUTIES.  

(a) During the Term hereof, BANKS shall consult with the District and its staff if 
and to the extent needed in accordance with the Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District Law 
(Health & Saf. Code §41300 et seq.) (the “AVAQMD Law”), and policies set by the BOARD, and all 
other applicable Federal, State and local laws.

(i) Independent Contractor.  DISTRICT and BANKS agree that BANKS 
will be performing services under this Agreement as an Independent Contractor, not as an employee. 
While the DISTRICT will set the policies for implementation of the Services, BANKS will determine 
the means, methods and details of daily performing the Services subject to the requirements of this 
Agreement.  DISTRICT only has the right to direct BANKS as to the desired end results with respect 
to any Services to be provided hereunder.  BANKS shall not be eligible for any employee benefits 
provided by DISTRICT in connection with the performance of services under this Agreement. Except 
for fees and costs paid to BANKS as provided in this Agreement, DISTRICT shall not pay salaries, 
wages, expenses, benefits, payroll costs, costs related to withholding, Federal State and Social Security 
taxes, Federal and State Unemployment Taxes, statutory benefits, workers’ compensation insurance, 
and/or any other compensation to BANKS for performing services hereunder.

33 of 55



2
NG-U9ZQVMF2/4883-9920-9774v4/200653-0001

(ii) Substitution of Key Personnel.  BANKS has represented to DISTRICT 
that he will personally provide the Services under this Agreement.  Should BANKS become 
unavailable, this Agreement will terminate.

2.  TERM

2.01 Base Term.  This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall expire 
six (6) months thereafter, on  January 1, 2024, unless extended pursuant to subsection 2.02 below or 
terminated pursuant to Section 6 below.

2.02 This Agreement may be extended by mutual written agreement of the Parties. 

2.03 Termination. Either Party may terminate this Agreement with sixty (60) days written 
notice to the other Party.  In the event of termination for any reason, DISTRICT will be obligated to 
pay BANKS any earned and unpaid fees and approved expenses for services rendered prior to 
termination, and such fees and expenses shall become immediately due and payable upon receipt of 
the final invoice.

3.  PAYMENT

3.01 Base Payment.  As payment for BANKS' services hereunder, the DISTRICT shall 
pay BANKS $2,500.00 per month. BANKS shall receive an IRS Form 1099 from DISTRICT and 
BANKS shall be responsible for all taxes associated with all payments hereunder. 

4.  REIMBURSEMENT OF BUSINESS EXPENSES

4.01 Business Expenses.  BANKS shall be reimbursed for all necessary and reasonable, out-
of-pocket business expenses incurred on behalf of the DISTRICT in the performance of this 
Agreement.

4.02 Expense Reports.  To obtain reimbursement, BANKS shall promptly submit expense 
reports to the DISTRICT with appropriate supporting documentation in accordance with the 
DISTRICT’s policies for the reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses.

5.  CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

5.01 Prohibition.  BANKS shall not engage in any work, paid or unpaid, that creates an 
actual or potential conflict of interest with the DISTRICT.  If the BOARD reasonably believes that 
such a conflict exists, the BOARD may direct BANKS to discontinue the other work.  BANKS' failure 
to promptly comply with such direction shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement.

6.  GENERAL PROVISIONS

6.01 Successors and Assigns.  The rights and obligations of the DISTRICT under this 
Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the 
DISTRICT.  BANKS shall not be entitled to assign any of his rights or obligations under this 
Agreement nor to subcontract or delegate to any employee or other third party BANKS’s duties 
hereunder.

34 of 55



3
NG-U9ZQVMF2/4883-9920-9774v4/200653-0001

6.02 Waiver.  Either party’s failure to enforce any provision of the Agreement shall not in 
any way be construed as a waiver of any such provision or prevent the party thereafter from enforcing 
each and every other provision of this Agreement.

6.03 Attorney’s Fees.  Each side will bear its own attorney’s fees in any dispute arising out 
of, or in any way related to, the Agreement, except as may be required by law.

6.04 Severability.  In the event any portion of the Agreement is found to be unenforceable 
by an arbitrator or court of competent jurisdiction, such provision shall be deemed modified to the 
extent necessary to allow enforceability of the provision as so limited, it being intended that the parties 
shall receive the benefit contemplated herein to the fullest extent permitted by law.  If a deemed 
modification is not satisfactory in the judgment of such arbitrator or court, the unenforceable provision 
shall be deemed deleted, and the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be 
affected thereby.

6.05 Interpretation.  The headings set forth in this Agreement are for convenience only and 
shall not be used in interpreting the Agreement.  This Agreement has been drafted by and both parties 
have participated in the negotiation of the terms of this Agreement.  Furthermore, by signing this 
Agreement, BANKS acknowledges he has had an opportunity to review and revise this Agreement and 
have it reviewed by legal counsel, if desired, and therefore, the normal rule of construction to the effect 
that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party, shall not be employed in the 
interpretation of this Agreement.  This Agreement amends and supersedes in every respect the Original 
Agreement and the First Amendment.

6.06 Governing Law.  This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of California.

6.07 Notices.  Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in writing and 
shall be delivered as follows with notice deemed given as indicated: (i) by personal delivery upon 
receipt; (ii) by overnight courier upon written verification of receipt; (iii) by telecopy or facsimile 
transmission upon acknowledgment of receipt of electronic transmission; or (iv) by certified or 
registered mail, return receipt requested upon verification of receipt.

THE PARTIES HAVE READ THE FOREGOING AND FULLY UNDERSTAND 
EACH AND EVERY PROVISION CONTAINED HEREIN.

WHEREFORE, THE PARTIES HAVE EXECUTED THIS AGREEMENT ON THE 
DATES SHOWN BELOW.

Dated:  __________, 2023
Marvin Crist
Chairman

Dated:  __________, 2023
BRET BANKS

35 of 55



 36 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approve the First 

Amendment to the Agreement between the Antelope Valley Air Quality Management 

District (AVAQMD) and the City of Lancaster amending Section 13 in its entirety, to 

include Operational Oversight, naming Barbara Lods as the Executive Director pursuant to 

this Amendment, whose initial classification and compensation shall be Director 2000, 

Step 1 on the City of Lancaster’s compensation and classification schedule and shall be 

considered as an at-will employee; Find that the California Environmental Quality Act 

(CEQA) does not apply to this item; Authorize the Chairman to finalize terms and 

conditions of the proposed Agreement; and Authorize the Chairman to execute the final 

Agreement. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

36 of 55



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD 
 OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA 
   

 AGENDA ITEM #7        
 

            
           
DATE: June 20, 2023 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the First Amendment to the Agreement between the 
Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District (AVAQMD) and the City of Lancaster 
amending Section 13 in its entirety, to include Operational Oversight, naming Barbara 
Lods as the Executive Director pursuant to this Amendment, whose initial classification 
and compensation shall be Director 2000, Step 1 on the City of Lancaster’s compensation 
and classification schedule and shall be considered as an at-will employee; Find that the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this item; Authorize the 
Chairman to finalize terms and conditions of the proposed Agreement; and Authorize the 
Chairman to execute the final Agreement. 
 
SUMMARY:  This item presents a proposed First Amendment to Agreement for the City 
of Lancaster to provide administrative and operational services and oversight for the 
AVAQMD; authorizes the Chairman to finalize terms and conditions of the proposed 
agreement; and authorizes the Chairman to execute the final Agreement. 
 
BACKGROUND: The Agreement for services between the AVAQMD and the City of 
Lancaster is for a period of five (5) years commencing on October 1, 2022 and ending on 
June 30, 2027, with an option to continue for two (2) more years under the same terms and 
conditions, unless earlier terminated, extended, or modified.   
 
This first Amendment to the Agreement provides Operational Oversight by providing the 
services of a Director to act in the capacity of Air Pollution Control Officer 
(APCO)/Executive Director, serving as an at-will employee of the City of Lancaster. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION: Governing Board approval is required to enter 
into contracts and agreements. 
 
REVIEW BY OTHERS: This item was reviewed by Allison E. Burns, Special Counsel as 
to legal form on or about June 14, 2023. 
 
FINANCIAL DATA: No increase in appropriation is anticipated action will not require any 
additional appropriation. 
 
PRESENTER:  Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

37 of 55



1 | P a g e

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

AND THE CITY OF LANCASTER

This amendment (Amendment) is made between the ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR 
QUAILITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT (AVAQMD) AND THE CITY OF LANCASTER 
(CITY).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, AVAQMD is the local agency with the Primary responsibility for the control 
of air pollution from all sources other than vehicular sources within the local jurisdiction (Health 
& Safety Code §39002, 40000); and

WHEREAS, AVAQMD has a jurisdiction as described in Health & Safety Code 
§41300(b) and more particularly described in AVAQMD Rule 103; and

WHEREAS, the CITY OF LANCASTER is within the jurisdiction as described in Health 
& Safety Code §41300(b);
 

WHEREAS, the AVAQMD and the CITY have by that certain agreement dated August 
24, 2022 (Agreement) agreed that AVAQMD will contract from the CITY certain services 
necessary to provide air pollution control services including human resources, staffing and fiscal 
administration adequate to meet the regulatory and legislated responsibilities of an air quality 
management district within the AVAQMD jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, the CITY agreed to provide such services consistent with all applicable laws 
and regulations pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, certain changes in personnel have occurred, requiring amendment of the 
Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the AVAQMD and the CITY together agree to amend the Agreement 
pursuant to the provisions of Title 1, Division 7, Chapter 5, Article 1 of the California 
Government Code (commencing with §6500).

In consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions the AVAQMD and the CITY agree as 
follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

38 of 55



2 | P a g e

1. AMENDMENT TO SECTION 13.  Section 13 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its 
entirety and replaced with the following:

13. OPERATIONAL OVERSIGHT

A. The CITY OF LANCASTER will provide the services of a Director to 
act in the capacity of the Air Pollution Control Officer (APCO)/Executive 
Director of AVAQMD. It is acknowledged and understood that the position 
of Executive Director is unique and that the person serving in this position 
must have the full confidence of the Governing Board of the AVAQMD. 
Accordingly, the Governing Board of the AVAQMD with a 75% majority will 
have the right, at any time, to request the removal of the Air Pollution Control 
Officer (APCO)/Executive Director or any replacement thereof from the 
position of Executive Director. The replacement for the position of Executive 
Director will be subject to the review and approval of AVAQMD Governing 
Board and AVAQMD will be responsible for and shall defend and indemnify 
the CITY OF LANCASTER from and against any and all costs, expenses, 
liabilities and/or claims (i) with regard to the removal of the Air Pollution 
Control Officer (APCO)/Executive Director pursuant to this Paragraph 13.A., 
and (ii) to locate and hire any replacement Air Pollution Control Officer 
(APCO)/Executive Director. 

B. The initial Executive Director of AVAQMD pursuant to this 
Amendment will be Barbara Lods, whose initial classification and 
compensation shall be as a “Director 2000, Step 1” on the CITY OF 
LANCASTER’s compensation and classification schedule, with a starting 
salary as of the execution hereof of $86.36 per hour ($14,969.18 per month). 
Any removal of Barbara Lods from this position pursuant to the provisions of 
paragraph 13.A., above, will result in her removal from employment with the 
CITY OF LANCASTER.

C. The Governing Board of the AVAQMD reserves the right to contract 
separately for operation oversight of the AVAQMD office. The CITY OF 
LANCASTER will provide reasonable access to its records and personnel for 
such oversight. Such third party hired for oversight may direct day to day 
operations under this Agreement as well as oversee actions of staff to provide 
services under this Agreement, however such third party shall not have the 
right to change the scope or nature of Services under this Agreement nor 
exercise any personnel related authority under the CITY OF LANCASTER’s 
policies and procedures including, but not limited to, performance reviews 
and discipline of CITY OF LANCASTER personnel. Nothing in this 

39 of 55



3 | P a g e

provision shall prevent either the AVAQMD Governing Board or any person 
contracted to provide operation oversight from providing input, advice and 
consultation regarding AVAQMD issues. 

2.  AMENDMENT TO EXHIBIT A.  Exhibit A to the Agreement is hereby deleted in its 
entirety and replaced with Exhibit A hereto.

3. EFFECTIVE DATE

This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2023, for the term specified in Section 2 of the 
Agreement.

4.  NO OTHER CHANGES

Except as amended by this Amendment, all provisions of the Agreement shall remain in 
full force and effect and shall govern the actions of the Parties.

This Agreement is executed in the City of Lancaster, County of Los Angeles.

ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY CITY OF LANCASTER
MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

BY: ____________________________ BY: __________________________
        Bret Banks, APCO         Jason Caudle, City Manager

DATED: _______________________ DATED: _______________________

Approved as to Legal Form

_______________________________

40 of 55



4 | P a g e

41 of 55



5 | P a g e

ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND CONSENT
TO FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE

ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
AND THE CITY OF LANCASTER

The undersigned hereby expressly acknowledges and consents to the terms of that certain First 
Amendment to Agreement Between the Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District 
(“AVAQMD”) and the City of Lancaster (“City”) dated _______, 2023 (the “Amendment”), 
including, but not limited to:

1. That the person serving in the position of Air Pollution Control Officer (“APCO/Executive 
Director”) must have the full confidence of the Governing Board of the AVAQMD. 

2. That the Governing Board of the AVAQMD with a 75% majority will have the right, at 
any time, to request the removal of the undersigned as APCO/Executive Director. 

3. That as APCO/Executive Director, the undersigned is an at-will employee not entitled to 
due process rights pursuant to Skelly v. State Personnel Board (1975) 15 Cal.3d 194.

This Agreement is executed in the City of Lancaster, County of Los Angeles on this ____ day 
of _________, 2023.

__________________________
        Barbara Lods

 

42 of 55



1
4860-8956-8094v1/022283-0548

EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF MATERIALS AND SERVICES

The CITY OF LANCASTER agrees to provide services to the AVAQMD as specified in the 
Agreement, namely: provide administration and operations, adequate to meet the regulatory and 
legislated responsibilities of an air quality management district within the AV AQMD jurisdiction 
specified in Division 26 of the California Health & Safety Code (commencing with §39000). The scope 
of services that the CITY OF LANCASTER may provide as directed by the fiscal year budget are 
described below. 

In the event the AVAQMD Governing Board redirects or appoints a third party to perform any 
of the services or functions listed herein to another party, contractor, consultant or vendor, the CITY 
OF LANCASTER will be relieved from any and all liabilities arising out of or connection with the 
performance of such services by any or all third parties from the effective date of such assignment. The 
AVAQMD shall indemnify and hold harmless the CITY OF LANCASTER, its agents and employees, 
against all liabilities arising out of or connected with the transfer of such assignment. 

The CITY OF LANCASTER agrees to hire and provide staffing for the following positions to serve 
in the existing capacity on behalf of the AVAQMD operations:

City of Lancaster
Title

City of 
Lancaster 
Employee 

Group

AVAQMD
Working Title

Starting Annual Salary Range Steps 1-6. 
(City of Lancaster: Effective July 1, 2022)

Director 2000 Executive Director 
(APCO)

$179,630.16 $188,611.68 $198,042.24 $207,944.28 $218,341.56 $239,506.92

Manager 3000 Operations 
Manager

$116,759.66 $122,597.65 $128.727.53 $135,163.91 $141,922.10 $155,679.43

Coordinator II 4000 Grants Analyst $80,833.66 $84.875.35 $89,119.11 $93,575.07 $98,253.82 $107,778.13
Inspector 4000 Air Quality 

Specialist III
$80,833.66 $84,875.35 $89,119.11 $93,575.07 $98,253.82 $107,778.13

Specialist II 4000 Air Quality 
Specialist I

$71,852.00 $75,444.60 $79,216.83 $83,177.68 $87,336.56 $95,802.84

Senior Administrative 
Assistant

4000 Office Assistant $71.852.00 $78.032.01 $82,138.96 $86,462.06 $91,012.70 $95,802.84

The referenced salaries will be used as the initial salary basis for the employees involved in the initial 
transition. Annually, THE CITY OF LANCASTER and the AVAQMD will amend or confirm the 
titles and organizational structure in concurrence with the annual budget process. The CITY OF 
LANCASTER will provide all benefits for the above listed personnel as it does for all other CITY OF 
LANCASTER employees. As such all listed positions will be subject to amendments and changes 
approved by the CITY OF LANCASTER city council. 

Grant Account/Management: all activities including, but not limited to, making application 
for available funds, soliciting projects that meet the objectives of each grant program, developing and 
administering contracts to ensure the grant program objectives are met; disbursing funds and 
performing reviews on contract performance. A portion of the CITY OF LANCASTER finance 
department staff will supervise and account for the grant's activity and the AVAQMD will be billed on 
a time and material basis for such support. 

43 of 55



2
4860-8956-8094v1/022283-0548

Administrative Services: all activities including, but not limited to, operations for a staffed 
office located in the AVAQMD jurisdiction with regular business operating hours, revenue collection 
and expenditure tracking, budget preparation and administration, development, implementation and 
maintenance of an automated system for tracking permits and permit activities, procurement and 
maintenance of facilities, operations and fixed assets as set forth in the annual budget, and 
miscellaneous expenses as identified in the annual budget. Financial and accounting services include, 
but are not limited to, appropriate accounting procedures to maintain bank accounts, receive and 
expend funds and report accordingly, and computer information systems. 

Executive Services: all activities including, but not limited to services of the Air Pollution 
Control Officer/Executive Officer, direction and oversight of all operations of the AV QMD, support 
for boards, commissions and committees, including the Governing Board and the Hearing Board.

44 of 55



 45 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: 1) Award an amount 

not to exceed $33,237 in Mobile Source Emission Reductions Program (AB 923) funds to 

Jeff Pantana for the replacement of an older diesel tractor with new, cleaner technology; 2) 

Authorize the Executive Director/APCO the option to change the funding source if 

warranted or if other applicable funding sources become available; 3) Authorize the 

Deputy Director and staff to negotiate target time frames and technical project details and 

execute an agreement, approved as to legal form by the Office of District Counsel; and 4) ) 

Find that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this item. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

45 of 55



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA

AGENDA ITEM # 8

DATE:  June 20, 2023

RECOMMENDATION: 1) Award an amount not to exceed $33,237 in Mobile Source 
Emission Reductions Program (AB 923) funds to Jeff Pantana for the replacement of an 
older diesel tractor with new, cleaner technology; 2) Authorize the Executive 
Director/APCO the option to change the funding source if warranted or if other 
applicable funding sources become available; 3) Authorize the Deputy Director and staff 
to negotiate target time frames and technical project details and execute an agreement, 
approved as to legal form by the Office of District Counsel; and 4) ) Find that the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this item.

SUMMARY:  This item awards an amount not to exceed $33,237 of Mobile Source 
Emission Reductions Program (AB 923) funds to Robert Dedmore for the replacement of 
a 1987 diesel tractor with new, cleaner technology certified to the Final Tier 4/current 
emission standards.

BACKGROUND:  AVAQMD received an application from Jeff Pantana for grant 
funding to replace an older diesel tractor.  The proposed tractor currently operates 
approximately 550 hours a year for maintenance and upkeep of approximately 10-arces 
of property including unpaved dirt road (West Ave. E-8).  Applicant is not subject to any 
regulation and proposes voluntary participation in the off-road equipment replacement 
program to reduce emissions by early retirement of an older, higher polluting diesel 
tractor and replacing it with new, cleaner technology that meets the current emission 
standards.  Staff has evaluated the project for eligibility pursuant to the guidelines and 
finds the proposed project eligible for 80% percent toward the replacement equipment.  
Retirement of the proposed project produces an estimated 0.51 tons/yr. early emission 
reductions with a 3-year project life.  Early fleet turnover provides emission reductions 
that help the Valley towards attainment of the national ambient air quality standards.

cc: Bret Banks
Barbara Lods
Julie McKeehan

46 of 55



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA

AGENDA ITEM # 8 PAGE 2

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION: Governing Board approval is needed for the 
use of District funds.  Additionally, Governing Board authorization is needed for the 
Executive Director/APCO and staff to negotiate and execute an agreement with the grant 
recipient.  
 
REVIEW BY OTHERS:  This item was reviewed by Allison E. Burns, Special Counsel 
to the Governing Board, as to legal form and by Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO – 
on or before June 6, 2023.

FINANCIAL DATA:  Funding is available from the District’s Mobile Source Emission 
Reductions Program (AB 923) funds.

INTERESTED PARTIES: Jeff Pantana

PRESENTER:  Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst

47 of 55



 48 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: 1) Award an amount 

not to exceed $82,000 in Mobile Source Emission Reductions Program funds to the City of 

Lancaster for a hydrogen mobile fueler; 2) Authorize the Executive Director the option to 

change the funding source if warranted or if other applicable funding sources become 

available; 3) Authorize the Executive Director and staff to negotiate target time frames and 

technical project details and execute an agreement, approved as to legal form by the Office 

of District Counsel; and 4) ) Find that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

does not apply to this item. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

48 of 55



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA

AGENDA ITEM # 9

DATE:  June 20, 2023

RECOMMENDATION: 1) Award an amount not to exceed $82,000 in Mobile Source 
Emission Reductions Program funds to the City of Lancaster for a hydrogen mobile 
fueler; 2) Authorize the Executive Director the option to change the funding source if 
warranted or if other applicable funding sources become available; 3) Authorize the 
Executive Director and staff to negotiate target time frames and technical project details 
and execute an agreement, approved as to legal form by the Office of District Counsel; 
and 4) ) Find that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to 
this item.

SUMMARY:  This item awards an amount not to exceed $82,000 of Mobile Source 
Emission Reductions Program funds to the City of Lancaster toward the purchase of a 
temporary hydrogen mobile fueler to support the City’s growing fleet of hydrogen fuel 
cell electric vehicles (FCEV).  Proposed funding consists of $41,000 of AB 923 and 
$41,000 of AB 2766 pursuant to the requirements of the grant guidelines.

BACKGROUND:  AVAQMD received an application from the City of Lancaster for 
grant funding to establish a temporary hydrogen mobile fueler. The City of Lancaster is 
recognized as the first city in the US to embrace hydrogen power and is advancing their 
vision by establishing temporary hydrogen fueling for their growing fleet of hydrogen 
fuel cell electric vehicles (FCEV) with future plans to establish public options for 
hydrogen fueling.  The mobile fueler (system) will be based at the City Maintenance 
Yard located at the corner of BYD Blvd and Avenue H.  The system will be used 
exclusively to fuel City fleet vehicles and will only be accessible by trained staff 
members of the fleet team. FCEV running on hydrogen fuel offers zero emissions 
benefiting local air quality.  It is highly efficient as a clean fuel and offers fast fueling 
times for zero emission vehicles. Staff has evaluated the project pursuant to grant 
guidelines for the use of Mobile Source Emission Reductions Program funds and 
proposes to support the project 100 percent consisting of $41,000 of AB 923 and $41,000 
of AB 2766.  The adoption of clean fuels helps to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, 
improves air quality, and advances the market for clean fuels and transportation offered 
to consumers.

cc: Bret Banks
Barbara Lods
Julie McKeehan

49 of 55



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA

AGENDA ITEM # 9 PAGE 2

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION: Governing Board approval is needed for the 
use of District funds.  Additionally, Governing Board authorization is needed for the 
Executive Director/APCO and staff to negotiate and execute an agreement with the grant 
recipient.  
 
REVIEW BY OTHERS:  This item was reviewed by Allison E. Burns, Special Counsel 
to the Governing Board, as to legal form and by Bret Banks, Executive Director/APCO – 
on or before June 8, 2023.

FINANCIAL DATA:  Funding is available from the District’s Mobile Source Emission 
Reductions Program funds (AB 2766 and AB 923).

INTERESTED PARTIES: City of Lancaster

PRESENTER:  Julie McKeehan, Grants Analyst

50 of 55



 51 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Conduct Continued 

Public Hearing to consider the proposed AVAQMD Budget for FY 2023-24:  a.  Re-Open 

the continued public hearing; b.  Receive supplemental staff report and/or staff update; c.  

Receive public testimony; d.  Close public hearing; e. Find that the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this item; f. Adopt a resolution 

approving and adopting the budget for FY 2023-2024. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 

51 of 55



MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
OF THE ANTELOPE VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

LANCASTER, CALIFORNIA

AGENDA ITEM #10

DATE:  June 20, 2023

RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct Continued Public Hearing to consider the proposed 
AVAQMD Budget for FY 2023-24:  a.  Re-Open the continued public hearing; b.  Receive 
supplemental staff report and/or staff update; c.  Receive public testimony; d.  Close public 
hearing; e. Find that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this 
item; f. Adopt a resolution approving and adopting the budget for FY 2023-2024.

SUMMARY:  The AVAQMD Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 is presented to the 
Governing Board for adoption and implementation beginning July 1, 2023.  

BACKGROUND:  A proposed budget summary and supporting documentation was prepared 
and made available in accordance with the 30-day Public Notice Requirement of Health and 
Safety Code §40131(a)(1).  All persons within the Antelope Valley Air Quality Management 
District jurisdiction who were subject to fees during the prior fiscal year were properly notified 
of the availability of the information (pursuant to H&S §40131(a)(2)). A Public Hearing for the 
purpose of reviewing the budget and taking public comment, as required by H&S § 
40131(a)(3), was held May 16, 2023 and continued to this meeting.

The budget includes anticipated revenue to be derived from a proposed 8.0% fee increase. The 
fee increase is well within the provisions of Health & Safety Code §42311(a) and falls within 
the exemption found in Article XIIIC §1(e)(3) of the California Constitution.  

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:  Health and Safety Code §40131 requires that 
Districts adopt an annual budget.  Adoption of the budget will enable the AVAQMD 
Governing Board to make adequate financial plans and will ensure that the District can 
administer their respective functions in accordance with such plans.

REVIEW BY OTHERS:  This agenda item was approved as to legal form by Allison Burns, 
Special Counsel on or before June 6, 2023.

FINANCIAL DATA:  There is no additional financial impact resulting from this presentation 
and public hearing.

PRESENTER:  Barbara Lods, Operations Manager.

52 of 55



RESOLUTION NO. 23-02

Page 1 of 3

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

22

23

23

24

25

26

27

28

A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE ANTELOPE 
VALLEY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT APPROVING AND 
ADOPTING THE PROPOSED OPERATING BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-24.

On June 20, 2023, on motion by Member                                  , seconded by Member 

                                 , and carried, the following resolution is adopted:

WHEREAS, the Air Pollution Control Officer has submitted to the Governing Board 

an annual budget for the Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District (AVAQMD) for 

the fiscal year 2023-24; and 

WHEREAS, a proposed budget summary and supporting documentation were 

prepared and made available in accordance with the 30 day Public Notice requirement (Health 

and Safety Code §40131(a)(1)); and 

WHEREAS, all persons within the District area who were subject to fees during the 

prior fiscal year were properly notified of the availability of the information (Health and Safety 

Code §40131(a)(2)); and 

WHEREAS, a separate Public Hearing for the exclusive purpose of reviewing the 

budget and taking public comment, as required by Health and Safety Code §40131(a)(3), was 

held on May 16, 2023 and continued to June 20, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the annual budget contains estimates of the services, activities and 

programs comprising the budget, and contains expenditure requirements and their resources 

available to the AVAQMD; and 

WHEREAS, the expenses budgeted for all funds for fiscal year 2023-24 are 

$6,411,409 (Six Million, Four Hundred Eleven Thousand, Four Hundred Nine); and 

WHEREAS, the revenue budgeted from all funds for fiscal year 2023-24 is 

$6,492,647 (Six Million, Four Hundred Ninety-Two Thousand, Six Hundred Forty-Seven); 

and 

WHEREAS, the annual budget will enable the AVAQMD Governing Board to make 

adequate financial plans and will ensure that the AVAQMD officers can administer their 

respective functions in accordance with such plans, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the AVAQMD Governing Board, the 

53 of 55



RESOLUTION NO. 23-02

Page 2 of 3

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

22

23

23

24

25

26

27

28

following: 

The Air Pollution Control Officer, or designee, is authorized and hereby directed to 

execute the initial and final applications for potential State subvention funds and CAP funds 

for Fiscal Year 2023-24.

The annual budget for the AVAQMD for the fiscal year 2023-24 is hereby approved 

and adopted, and the amounts of proposed expenditures, as specified, are appropriate for the 

account classifications as herein specified. 

A. The 2023-24 Budget for expenses is hereby adopted, establishing the following:

ACCOUNT CLASSIFICATION 2023-24 ADOPTED BUDGET

Personnel Expenses $1,828,647

Operating Expenses 528,800

Program Expenses 3,948,962

Capital Expenses 105,000

TOTAL EXPENSE BUDGET $6,411,409

B. The 2023-24 Budget for revenue is hereby adopted, establishing a revenue base for the 

expenditures noted above:

ACCOUNT CLASSIFICATION 2022-23 ADOPTED BUDGET

Permit Fees $1,353,600

Application Fees 32,325

Fines & Penalties 10,000

Interest Income 10,000

Revenue from (Grant) Programs 3,418,217

Federal and State Revenue 1,668,415

TOTAL REVENUE BUDGET $6,492,647

Cash to/from Reserve                                               $81,238

Committed Fund Balance for Cash Reserves        $1M

54 of 55



RESOLUTION NO. 23-02

Page 3 of 3

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

22

23

23

24

25

26

27

28

Pursuant to Section 53901 of the California Government Code, the Finance Manager shall file 

a copy of this resolution with the Auditor of the County of Los Angeles, as required.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 

adoption.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Antelope 

Valley Air Quality Management District by the following vote: 

AYES: MEMBER:

NOES: MEMBER:

ABSENT: MEMBER:

ABSTAIN: MEMBER:

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
)
)  ss:

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES )

I, Adrianna Castaneda, Administrative Assistant of the Governing Board of the 
Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District, hereby certify the foregoing to be a full, 
true and correct copy of the record of the action as the same appears in the Official Minutes of 
said Governing Board at its meeting of June 20, 2023.

, 
Adrianna Castaneda________
Administrative Secretary, 
Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District.

55 of 55


	Meeting
	BOARD MEMBERS
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	Approve Minutes from Regular Governing Board Meeting of May 16, 2023. Find that the California Environmental Quality Act does not apply to this item.
	01. Draft Minutes 05.16.2023.pdf (4 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4


	Monthly Grant Funding Summary.  Receive and file. Find that the California Environmental Quality Act does not apply to this item.
	01. Item #2 Grants Fund Summary May 2023.pdf (1 page)

	Monthly Activity Report.  Receive and file. Find that the California Environmental Quality Act does not apply to this item.
	01. May 2023 Meeting Operations Activity Report.docx (1 page)
	02. Monthly CEQA Report JUN Board 2023.pdf (3 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3


	Approve payments to City of Lancaster in the amount of $249,058.16 for FY23 Quarter 3 expenditures. Find that the California Environmental Quality Act does not apply to this item.
	01. Minute Item COL Qtr 3 Invoice.docx (1 page)
	02. COL QTR 3 FY23 Invoice.pdf (1 page)

	This Preliminary Financial Report is provided to the Governing Board for information concerning the fiscal status of the District at April 30, 2023.
	01. Financial Agenda Item 04.30.2023.docx (1 page)
	02. Financial Report 04.30.2023.pdf (9 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9


	Consider the Consulting Agreement with Bret Banks; authorize the Chairman of the Governing Board to sign the agreement; Find that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this item and direct staff actions.
	01 Minute Item - Bret Banks Contract FY24.docx (1 page)
	02 Consulting Agreement BANKS 2023 4883-9920-9774_4.docx (3 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3


	Approve the First Amendment to the Agreement between the Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District (AVAQMD) and the City of Lancaster amending Section 13 in its entirety, to include Operational Oversight, naming Barbara Lods as the Executive Director pursuant to this Amendment, whose initial classification and compensation shall be Director 2000, Step 1 on the City of Lancaster’s compensation and classification schedule and shall be considered as an at-will employee; Find that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this item; Authorize the Chairman to finalize terms and conditions of the proposed Agreement; and Authorize the Chairman to execute the final Agreement.
	01 Minute Item AVAQMD COL Amended Contract FY 24.pdf (1 page)
	02 FIRST AMENDMENT TO AVAQMD - COL AGREEMENT RE PERSONNEL 4894-7992-8413_1.docx (5 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5

	03 Exhibit A - Scope of Materials and Services (pulled from COL AVAQMD and Lancaster), 4860-8956-8094_1.docx (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2



	ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION
	DEFERRED ITEMS
	NEW BUSINESS
	1) Award an amount not to exceed $33,237 in Mobile Source Emission Reductions Program (AB 923) funds to Jeff Pantana for the replacement of an older diesel tractor with new, cleaner technology; 2) Authorize the Executive Director/APCO the option to change the funding source if warranted or if other applicable funding sources become available; 3) Authorize the Deputy Director and staff to negotiate target time frames and technical project details and execute an agreement, approved as to legal form by the Office of District Counsel; and 4) ) Find that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this item.
	01. Jeff Pantana Tractor Repl. Project item.docx (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2


	1) Award an amount not to exceed $82,000 in Mobile Source Emission Reductions Program funds to the City of Lancaster for a hydrogen mobile fueler; 2) Authorize the Executive Director the option to change the funding source if warranted or if other applicable funding sources become available; 3) Authorize the Executive Director and staff to negotiate target time frames and technical project details and execute an agreement, approved as to legal form by the Office of District Counsel; and 4) ) Find that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this item.
	01. City of Lancaster Hydrogen Fuel Project item.docx (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2


	Conduct Continued Public Hearing to consider the proposed AVAQMD Budget for FY 2023-24:  a.  Re-Open the continued public hearing; b.  Receive supplemental staff report and/or staff update; c.  Receive public testimony; d.  Close public hearing; e. Find that the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to this item; f. Adopt a resolution approving and adopting the budget for FY 2023-2024.
	01 Budget Adoption Agenda Item FY24.docx (1 page)
	02. Budget Reso FY 2023-24.docx (3 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3




	Mailed & Posted on:


